
CURRY COUNTY  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

94235 Moore Street 

Gold Beach, Oregon 

(541) 247-3296 

BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us 

www.co.curry.or.us 

 

 

AGENDA 
JOINT PLANNING/BOC BUSINESS MEETING 

October 19, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 

Items may be taken out of sequence to accommodate staff availability and the public. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. AMENDMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

To make a public comment, please submit a Speaker’s Slip to the Chair prior to the start of the 

meeting, or email public comments during the meeting to BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us. Public 

comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker.  

 

4. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Curry Transportation System Plan – Kittleson & Associates 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Minutes for Business Meeting on October 4, 2023 

B. Adopt Position Description – Deputy Clerk I 

C. Approve Promotion – V. James 

D. Adopt Position Description – Electronic Records Specialist 

E. Adopt Position Descriptions – Economic Development  

F. Adopt Position Description – Corrections Sergeant  

G. Approve Re-Hire – B. Crockett 

H. Adopt Position Description – Department Specialist II 

I. Approve signatory authority – Deputy Treasurer 

J. Adopt Rules of Order 

 

6. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

A. Employee Life Insurance Plan Benefits – Proposal  

i. Nippon Life Benefits Proposal 

B. Parks Expansion and Department Change 

i. Order 

ii. Prior Order - 23057 

C. Brookings Social Security Bar – Management by County Parks 

i. Information Packet 

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us
http://www.co.curry.or.us/
mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


 

Meetings are recorded and will be available on YouTube – Curry County Civic TV.  

To make a public comment, please submit a Speaker’s Slip to the Chair prior to the start of the meeting, 

or email public comments during the meeting to BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us. 

Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48-hour advance notification. 

 

 

 

D. Wildfire Hazard Map Letter 

i. Draft Letter 

 

7. ELECTED OFFICIAL UPDATES 

8. COMMISSIONER UPDATES 

A. Commissioner Alcorn 

B. Commissioner Herzog 

C. Commissioner Trost 

 

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. 192.660(2)() 

 

10. OTHER   

ORS 192.640(1) provides that “… notice shall include a list of the principal subjects 

anticipated to be considered at the meeting, but this requirement shall not limit the ability 

of a governing body to consider additional subjects.” 

 

11. ADJOURN 
 

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



 

  CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Commissioners’ Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 

94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon 

www.co.curry.or.us 

 

BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES 

October 4, 2023 

Please note: For detailed information on any agenda item refer to Audio/Video.  
. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The meeting was called to order 9:00 a.m.; present were Chair John Herzog, Vice Chair Brad 

Alcorn, and Commissioner Jay Trost  

 

Staff present: Director of County Operations and County Counsel Ted Fitzgerald, Counsel 

Assistant Rabiah Lee, and Administrative Assistant Natasha Tippetts 

 

The Pledge was recited by all. 

 

2. AMENDMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 

Herzog requested to add item 3B: Introduction of Deputy Treasurer, Nick Vicino  

 

Trost motioned to approve the agenda as amended. Alcorn seconded. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

3. AWARDS 

A. Sheriff Ward recognized K-9 Officer King for five years of service and Officer Krohn for 

ten years of service  

B. Treasurer Barnes introduced Deputy Treasurer Vicino 

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

• Mary Rowe (via phone) – provided opinion on Agenda Item 6D 

• Jeff Sheldon – expressed negative opinion on BOEM project 

• Lynn Coker – expressed negative opinion on BOEM project 

• Sara Koenig – expressed negative opinion on BOEM project 

• Charmaine Brackett – expressed negative opinion on BOEM project 

• Thena Harteri – Lyons– expressed negative opinion on BOEM project 

• David Barnes – expressed negative opinion on BOEM project 

• Vicky Shaw – expressed negative opinion on BOEM project 

• Janice Gober – expressed negative opinion on BOEM project 

• Patrick Hollinger – expressed negative opinion on BOEM project 

 

7474



 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Minutes for Emergency Meeting on September 19, 2023 

B. Approve Minutes for Business Meeting on September 20, 2023 

C. Approve Minutes for BOC-DCO Meeting on August 31, 2023 

D. Approve Minutes for BOC-DCO Meeting on September 7, 2023 

E. Approve Minutes for BOC-DCO Meeting on September 15, 2023 

F. Approve Minutes for BOC-DCO Meeting on September 21, 2023 

G. Approve Deputy IT Director Job Description 

H. Approve Promotion – R. Carpenter 

I. Approve Promotion – W. Robbins 

J. Approve contract with Advanced Automatic Doors – Courthouse 

K. Approve Resolution ending Local Emergency – Anvil Fire 

L. Approve Agreement with LCOG – Financial Services 

M. Approve Letter to ODFW 

 

Alcorn motioned to approve the consent calendar. Trost seconded. Motion carried 

unanimously.           

 

6. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

A. Appoint Representative to BOEM Intergovernmental Energy Task Force 

 

Commissioners and County Counsel discussed a formal position to take regarding the 

proposed BOEM project.  

 

Commissioner Trost proposed: “The Curry County Board of Commissioners adamantly 

opposes the harvesting of wind energy off the coast of Curry County. This opposition is 

found to be unanimous among the Curry County Board of Commissioners representing the 

citizens of Curry County.”  

 

All Commissioners agreed with said statement to be the final formal position and letter to 

BOEM during the open public time.  

 

Alcorn motioned to appoint Commissioner Trost as the BOEM Task Force 

Representative for Curry County. Trost seconded. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Chair Herzog called regular session to break at 10:12 a.m 

Chair Herzog called regular session to resume at 10:20 a.m. 

 

B. Dissolution of Code Enforcement & Reassignment of Positions 

 

Trost motioned to dissolve the Code Enforcement Department and reassign personnel 

and positions accordingly. Alcorn seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Chair Herzog called executive session at 10:30 a.m 

Chair Herzog called regular session to resume at 11:07 a.m. 

7575



 

Herzog motioned that based on the results of this discussion, the unemployment of Jordon 

Green is terminated immediately in accordance with Article 51(F). Trost seconded. Motion 

carried unanimously.  

 

C. Fair Board Appointment 

 

Commissioners are tabling this item to hold a joint Fair Board/BOC Workshop 

 

D. Agenda Item Policy Amendment 

 

Alcorn motioned to amend the Agenda Item Policy to change the day and time of 

Board Business Meetings. Trost seconded. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

E. Cooperative Services Agreement with Department of Agriculture 

 

Alcorn motioned to approve the Cooperative Service Agreement between Curry 

County and the USDA. Trost seconded. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

7.  ELECTED OFFICIAL UPDATES 

None 

 

8.   COMMISSIONER UPDATES 

A. Commissioner Alcorn:  

Gold Beach having Workshop on October 19th at 6:30 p.m. about camping policy 

 

B. Commissioner Herzog: 

Expressed thanks to community for thoughts and prayers on his sons recent passing.  

 

9.   OTHER  (ORS 192.640(1) “… notice shall include a list of the principal subjects 

anticipated to be considered at the meeting, but this requirement shall not limit the ability of 

a governing body to consider additional subjects.”) 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

Chair Herzog adjourned the meeting at 11:30 a.m. 

 

Dated this 19th day of October, 2023 

 

 

 

 

__________________ __________________  __________________ 

John Herzog, Chair  Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair  Jay Trost, Commissioner  

 

Minutes prepared by Natasha Tippetts, Administrative Assistant 

 
 

7676



77



 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 
 

 

In the Matter of an Order Adopting a ) 

Position Description for an Existing ) ORDER NO. ___________________ 

Position (Deputy Clerk I)   )       

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Shelley Denney, County Clerk, that the attached position 

description be adopted for the following position: 

 

        Deputy Clerk I                D 
                Position Title                   Range  

 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Curry County, a political subdivision of the State of 

Oregon, is in agreement with the above stated recommendation. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above stated recommendation be in 

effect as of October 19, 2023.  This description replaces any previous description approved for this 

position. 

 

DATED this 19th day of October, 2023 

 

          BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          John Herzog, Chair 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_____________________________      _______________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

 

7878



1 

 

CURRY COUNTY 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
JOB TITLE: Deputy Clerk I - Clerk’s Office 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
EXEMPT:  No 
SALARY LEVEL: D 
SUPERVISOR: Curry County Clerk 
PREPARED BY: Curry County Clerk                    June 2023 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
GENERAL POSITION SUMMARY: 

 

Perform highly complex and varied functions related to the recording of legal documents, 

issuing of marriage licenses, maintenance of voter registration records and preparation for and 

execution of elections. Manages as a U.S. Passport Acceptance Facility Agent. May serve as 

Deputy Registrar & Board of Property Tax Appeals Clerk.  

 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

1. Administers Oregon Revised Statues by receiving and verifying authenticity of documents 

presented for recording; indexes and files a wide variety of legal and other documents. 

 

2. Maintains record of fee collections, provides funds to the Treasurer, and prepares monthly 

financial reports. Maintains records of County Commissioners Orders, agreements, 

contracts, resolutions, and ordinances signed by the County Commissioners. Oversees and 

performs microfilming process for all recorded information. 

 

3. Assists the public in ascertaining what documents they may want; searches for recorded 

documents; answers questions and interprets documents; provides accurate and complete 

photocopies. Answers questions from the public relating to recording procedures and 

requirements. Designs and maintains web pages for County Clerk’s Recording/Election 

Divisions. 

 

4. Maintains voter registration data, voter history data, scanning and indexing of voter 

signatures to archival index. Prepares and issues official ballots to eligible voters, creates 

other audits, labels and materials required by Oregon Election Laws. Assembles and 

distributes elections supplies for drop sites, and other specific election needs required by 

Oregon Election Law. Explains and advises citizens in understanding their rights and 

responsibilities in exercising their voting franchise. 

 

7979



2 

 

5. Audits ballot processing and counting functions produced by Election Board Personnel.  

Proofs Taxing District records – code area splits, ballot text in preparation of ballot 

distribution. 

 

6. Upholds legal responsibilities as an Acceptance Agent. Accepts and properly allocates only 

authorized fees as established by the U.S. Department of State. 

 

7. Meets annual training requirements and stays up to date with correspondence from 

Passport Services in the form of Agency Newsletters, notices, and any other procedure and 

policy updates. 

 

8. Maintains confidentiality by not releasing passport application information to anyone other 

than the applicant and Passport Services, unless expressly authorized. Makes passport 

records available to the U.S. Department of State Office of the Inspector General for review, 

monitoring, audit, or investigation.  

 

9. Complies with all instructions of the state registrar per ORS 432.035. Checks upon the 

compliance of others. Makes an immediate report to the state registrar of any violation of 

this chapter or of a rule adopted under this chapter coming to their notice by observation, 

upon complaint of a person or otherwise.  

 

10. Collects fees associated with vital statistics requests using the up-to-date fee collection 

schedule. Deposits to the bank all collected fees and submits a report. 

 

11. Selects members for the Board of Property Tax Appeals after the Commissioners have 

appointed eligible persons to the pool. 

 

12. Receives and incorporates documents into the official record of the Board of Property Tax 

Appeals including appeal petitions, value recalculation worksheets, evidence, stipulations, 

and Summary of Actions. Distributes orders to Assessors office and Tax office directing 

them to reduce or sustain land values. 

 

13. Reviews and audits all petitions to determine compliance with ORS and to establish 

jurisdiction with the Board. Calculates and prepares the “Summary of Actions” of the Board 

of Property Tax Appeals for the Department of Revenue. 

 

 

SUPERVISORY CONTROLS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

No supervisory responsibilities. Supervised by Curry County Clerk. 

 

 

8080



3 

 

QUALIFICATIONS REQUIREMENTS: 

 

Knowledge of . . . 

• Standard office practices and procedures 

• Local, state, and federal election/recording laws 

• Real estate transactions, forms, and procedures  

• Basic accounting principles 

 

Ability to . . . 

• Analyze accounting records and prepare clear and concise reports as required  

• Work proficiently both independently and in a team environment dealing with the public, 

county officials/employees, agencies, candidates, and the media in a helpful, courteous, 

and tactful manner 

• Organize record keeping and clerical operations 

• Communicate and originate letters and memos in English effectively both verbally and in 

writing using good form, spelling, and grammar 

• Read and interpret various maps and/or legal documents to determine property 

ownership, location, and description 

• Use 10-Key accurately by touch 40-60 keystrokes per minute 

• Type accurately 40-60 WPM 

• Proof work personally performed and work done by others 

 

Skill in . . . 

• Microsoft Word and Excel programs and spreadsheets  

 

EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE: 

 

High school graduation or equivalency. 

 

Two years of progressively responsible clerical experience which includes one year of property 

transaction experience; plus additional course work in office practices and procedures including 

accounting; or any satisfactory equivalent of experience and training which demonstrates the 

ability to perform the above described duties.  

 

Continued compliance training and education required by Oregon Election Law. 

Possession of a valid Oregon Driver License with good driving record. 

 

 

 

 

 

8181



4 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORK ENVIROMENT: 

 

• The incumbent works in a professional office environment and uses a computer & 

keyboard, telephone and other office equipment as needed to perform duties.  

• The noise level in the work environment is typical of that of an office with frequent 

contact with customers and will encounter frequent interruptions throughout the workday, 

while maintaining attention to detail.  

• This position is regularly required to sit, talk; frequently required to use repetitive hand 

motion, stand, walk, reach, bend or lift up to 20 pounds regularly and 50 pounds 

occasionally. Performs occasional work after hours depending on the office work cycle.  

 

Reasonable accommodation may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform 

these essential functions. 

8282



83



BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 
 

 

In the Matter of the Promotion of an ) 

Employee     ) ORDER NO. ___________________ 

       

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Shelley Denney, County Clerk, that Victoria James, 

currently a Deputy Clerk I, Salary Range D, Step 3, at $3941/month, be promoted to the position 

of Deputy Clerk II, Salary Range E, Step 3, at $4174/month. 

             

The job description for the new position is attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Curry County, a political subdivision of the State 

of Oregon, is in agreement with the above stated recommendation. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above stated hire be in effect as of 

October 23, 2023. 

 

DATED this 19th day of October, 2023 

 

          BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          John Herzog, Chair 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_____________________________      _______________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

 

8484



1 

 

CURRY COUNTY 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
JOB TITLE: Deputy Clerk II - Clerk’s Office 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
EXEMPT:  No 
SALARY LEVEL: E 
SUPERVISOR: Curry County Clerk 
PREPARED BY: Curry County Clerk                  June 2023 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

GENERAL POSITION SUMMARY: 

 

Provide advanced general or specialized administrative support to the Clerk, Chief Deputy 

County Clerk or Supervisor of Elections. Performs advanced secretarial, fiscal record keeping, 

para-professional, and or clerical work involving duties of greater complexity and/or 

responsibility than the Deputy Clerk I. Duties may include lead worker or office management 

assignments.  

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

1. Administers Oregon Revised Statues by receiving and verifying authenticity of documents 

presented for recording; indexes and files a wide variety of legal and other documents. 

 

2. Maintains record of fee collections, provides funds to the Treasurer, and prepares monthly 

financial reports. Maintains records of County Commissioners Orders, Agreements, 

Contracts, Resolutions and Ordinances signed by the County Commissioners. Oversees 

and performs microfilming process for all recorded information. 

 

3. Assists the public in ascertaining what documents they may want; searches for recorded 

documents; answers questions and interprets documents; provides accurate and complete 

photocopies. Answers questions from the public relating to recording procedures and 

requirements. Designs and maintains web pages for County Clerk’s Recording/Election 

Divisions. 

 

4. Maintains voter registration data, voter history data, scanning and indexing of voter 

signatures to archival index. Prepares and issues official ballots to eligible voters, creates 

other audits, labels and materials required by Oregon Election Laws. Assembles and 

distributes elections supplies for drop sites, and other specific election needs required by 

Oregon Election Law. Explains and advises citizens in understanding their rights and 

responsibilities in exercising their voting franchise. 

 

8585



2 

 

5. Audits ballot processing and counting functions produced by Election Board Personnel.  

Proofs Taxing District records – code area splits, ballot text in preparation of ballot 

distribution. 

 

6. Assists in the drafting of ballot forms and preparation of specification for ballot printing, 

which includes the proofing of the official ballots prior to printing & distribution. 

 

7. Assists in recruiting, assigning, training, and reviewing work schedules of Election Board 

Personnel. 

 

8. Upholds legal responsibilities as an Acceptance Agent. Accepts and properly allocates only 

authorized fees as established by the U.S. Department of State. 

 

9. Meets annual training requirements and stays up to date with correspondence from 

Passport Services in the form of Agency Newsletters, notices, and any other procedure and 

policy updates.  

 

10. Maintains confidentiality by not releasing passport application information to anyone other 

than the applicant and Passport Services, unless expressly authorized. Makes passport 

records available to the U.S. Department of State Office of the Inspector General for review, 

monitoring, audit, or investigation.  

 

11. Complies with all instructions of the state registrar per ORS 432.035. Checks upon the 

compliance of others. Makes an immediate report to the state registrar of any violation of 

this chapter or of a rule adopted under this chapter coming to their notice by observation, 

upon complaint of a person or otherwise.  

 

12. Collects fees associated with vital statistics requests using the up-to-date fee collection 

schedule. Deposits to the bank all collected fees and submits a report.  

 

13. Selects members for the Board of Property Tax Appeals after the Commissioners have 

appointed eligible persons to the pool. Receives and incorporates documents into the official 

record of the Board of Property Tax Appeals including appeal petitions, value recalculation 

worksheets, evidence, stipulations, and Summary of Actions. Distributes orders to 

Assessors office and Tax office directing them to reduce or sustain land values. 

 

14. Reviews and audits all petitions to determine compliance with ORS and to establish 

jurisdiction with the Board. Calculates and prepares the “Summary of Actions” of the Board 

of Property Tax Appeals for the Department of Revenue. 

 

8686



3 

 

SUPERVISORY CONTROLS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

No supervisory responsibilities. Supervised by Curry County Clerk. 

 

QUALIFICATIONS REQUIREMENTS: 

 

Knowledge of . . . 

• Standard office practices and procedures 

• Local, state, and federal election/recording laws  

• Real estate transactions, forms, and procedures  

• Basic accounting principles 

 

Ability to . . . 

• Analyze accounting records and prepare clear and concise reports as required  

• Work proficiently both independently and in a team environment dealing with the public, 

county officials/employees, agencies, candidates and the media in a helpful, courteous, 

and tactful manner 

• Organize record keeping and clerical operations 

• Communicate and originate letters and memos in English effectively both verbally and in 

writing using good form, spelling, and grammar 

• Read and interpret various maps and/or legal documents to determine property 

ownership, location, and description 

• Use 10-Key accurately by touch 40-60 keystrokes per minute 

• Type accurately 40-60 WPM 

• Proof work personally performed and work done by others. 

• Maintain Confidentiality  

 

Skill in . . . 

• Microsoft Word and Excel programs and spreadsheets  

 

EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE: 

 

High school graduation or equivalency. 

 

Three years of progressively responsible clerical experience which includes one year of 

property transaction experience; plus additional course work in office practices and procedures 

including accounting; or any satisfactory equivalent of experience and training which 

demonstrates the ability to perform the above described duties.  

 

Continued compliance training and education required by Oregon Election Law. 

Possession of a valid Oregon Driver License with good driving record. 

8787



4 

 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORK ENVIROMENT: 

 

• The incumbent works in a professional office environment and uses a computer & 

keyboard, telephone and other office equipment as needed to perform duties.  

• The noise level in the work environment is typical of that of an office with frequent 

contact with customers and will encounter frequent interruptions throughout the workday, 

while maintaining attention to detail.  

• This position is regularly required to sit, talk; frequently required to use repetitive hand 

motion, stand, walk, reach, bend or lift up to 20 pounds regularly and 50 pounds 

occasionally. Performs occasional work after hours depending on the office work cycle.  

8888



89



 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 
 

 

In the Matter of an Order Adopting a ) 

Position Description for a New Position ) ORDER NO. ___________________ 

(Electronic Records Specialist)  )       

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Shelley Denney, County Clerk, that the attached position 

description be adopted for the following position: 

 

 Electronic Records Specialist    A 
                Position Title                   Range  

 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Curry County, a political subdivision of the State of 

Oregon, is in agreement with the above stated recommendation. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above stated recommendation be in 

effect as of October 19, 2023.   

 

DATED this 19th day of October, 2023 

 

          BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          John Herzog, Chair 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_____________________________      _______________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

 

9090



1 
 

CURRY COUNTY 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
JOB TITLE:  Electronic Records Specialist 

 

EXEMPT: No  
SALARY LEVEL: A  
SUPERVISOR: Curry County Clerk  
PREPARED BY Curry County Clerk October 2023 

 

GENERAL POSITION SUMMARY: 
 

Responsible for tasks associated with the electronic storage of records and documents. 
The tasks include document imaging operations by prepping, scanning, parsing and/or 
indexing in the division-wide document management system.  
 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

 
1. Operates scanning equipment and application software. 
 
2. Prep, sort and scans old records both from hard copy files and electronic files into 

database. Reviews scanned and imported documents to ensure quality and 
archivable standards.  

 
3. Accurately index critical pieces of information from the scanned documents to 

ensure ease of retrieval for research purposes.  
 

4. Maintain a clean work environment.  
 
 

 

SUPERVISORY CONTROLS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

No supervisory responsibilities.  Supervised by Curry County Clerk.  

9191



2 
 

QUALIFICATIONS REQUIREMENTS: 

 

 Knowledge of… 

• Various filing systems including alphabetical, numerical and chronological. 

• Business English, spelling, punctuation, and arithmetic 

• General office practices and procedures 

• Proficient in using various desktop software in a Windows environment.  

• Familiarity with land records is a strong advantage. 
Ability to… 

• Work well with computers and produce desired results. 

• Operate and oversee maintenance of standard office equipment including 
computers, printers, scanner, calculator/adding machine, photocopier, telephone 
answering machine, telephone system, breakroom equipment and utensils, 
electric pencil sharpener, radio, etc.… 

• Must be able to manage time efficiently, prioritize tasks, meet deadlines, and 
work independently with minimal supervision.  

• Organize, file, and retrieve materials and documents; follow verbal and written 
instructions; work effectively with other employees. 

• Must have strong propensity for detail and organization. 

• Willingness and ability to receive and follow instruction in procedures. 

• High level of accuracy and commitment to producing quality work. Data entry 
accuracy of at least 45 wpm. 

 
EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE: 
 
High School graduation or equivalency or any satisfactory equivalent combination of 
experience and training which demonstrates the ability to perform the above-described 
duties. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 
Work in this class involves the operation of a computer, typewriter, calculator, copy 
machine and other standard office equipment as well as specialized equipment. 
 
Reasonable accommodation may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to 
perform these essential functions. 

9292



9393



BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 

In the Matter of an Order Adopting a 

Position Description for Two Existing 

Positions  

(Economic Development Department) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

ORDER NO. ___________ 

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Michael E. Fitzgerald, Director of County Operations, 

that the attached position descriptions be adopted for the following position: 

 

Economic Development Assistant       D  

Position Title             Range 

 

Economic Development Administrator      M 

Position Title             Range 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Curry County, a political subdivision of the State of 

Oregon, is in agreement with the above-stated recommendation.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT the above stated position, which 

description is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, is adopted.  

 

DATED this 19th day of October, 2023. 

 

          BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

          _____________________________________________ 

          John Herzog, Chair 

 

 

          _____________________________________________ 

          Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_____________________________      _____________________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

 

9494



1 

CURRY COUNTY 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
JOB TITLE:  Economic Development Administrator 

 
 
EXEMPT:    Yes 
SALARY LEVEL: M 
SUPERVISOR: BOC Administrator 
PREPARED BY:  BOC Administrator     September  2023 
 
 

GENERAL POSITION SUMMARY:  

This position analyzes and initiates economic development needs of Curry County and serves as 

the program representative for the Curry County Tourism program. Develops, directs and 

implements programs, activities and goals of the County’s Economic Development Department, 

including efforts to actively build and maintain state and regional partnerships, engage the 

community, fulfill the Strategic Destination Management Plan, and assist locals and visitors to 

create a mutually beneficial relationship through support for local businesses, tourism, destination 

development and asset infrastructure. 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  

1. Assesses Curry County’s economic and community development needs, develops and 

administers the County’s Economic Development Strategic Plan, manages a business 

retention and expansion program, helps in developing an employable workforce, strives 

to increase trade sector jobs, and develops and implements programs to meet the needs 

identified within the Strategic Plan. Assists County businesses in expanding and improving 

opportunities. Works with County businesses regarding grants, funding, financing 

sources, and strategic planning. 

 

2. Manages the fiscal operations of the Economic Development Department; prepares and 

administers Department budgets based on resource requirements, cost estimates and 

County objectives and goals.  Approves, monitors, and documents expenditures assuring 

compliance with approved budgets. 

 

3. Oversees the County Business Licensing program. Administers and manages the 

Transient Lodging Tax and Short Term Rental programs per ordinance, the Transient 

Lodging Tax program including tax collection, audits, reports, and fund distribution as set 

forth by County ordinances. 

 

4. Prepares and coordinates grant applications relative to community development and 

economic needs. Monitors and researches State and Federal grant programs.  Initiates 

MOUs, IGAs, contracts, resolutions, orders, and policies relative to departmental function, 

program implementation, and economic development. 

9595



2 

5. Prepares and maintains information on utilities, taxes, zoning, transportation, community 

services, legislation, financing tools, and incentives in order to respond to requests for 

information for economic development purposes, and the coordination with other 

departments and agencies as needed. Provides professional economic development 

advice and serves as an advocate for economic development in line with the County 

Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinances, and goals established by the Strategic Plan. 

 

6. Directs the implementation, destination development, and staffing of the Curry County 

Tourism program. Coordinates with state and regional partners to develop and plan capital 

assets and investments. Creates a variety of developmental efforts through marketing, 

promotions, social media advertising, and print media. 

 

7. Coordinates and executes both domestic and international promotion campaigns from 

conception to completion, with an understanding of how each initiative aligns with the 

Strategic Destination Management Plan. This position supports coastal tourism and 

development through marketing, promotions, collaboration, stewardship, and 

sustainability of tourism as an economic driver for Curry County.  

 

8. Grows the visitor experience by building partnerships and collaboration among 

businesses, organizations, agencies, individuals, destination leadership team, and 

community groups. Develops and executes destination initiatives for Curry County. 

 

9. Measures success by deliverables of strategies and objectives implemented to support 

the strategic vision and mission of sustainable tourism in Curry County. Designs and 

executes tactics to increase tourism though investments such as hiking, biking, water, 

food and art trails, culture, placemaking, history, attractions, and events.  

 

SUPERVISORY CONTROLS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

Supervises Economic Development staff in a variety of roles to implement all programs under 

Economic Development. 

 

QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS: 

Knowledge of . . .  

• Economic development programs, opportunities and sources of funding at city, county, 

state, and federal levels, as well as grant and contract administration 

• Principles and practices of governmental fiscal management, including budget 

preparation, expenditure control, and record keeping 

• County, state and federal operations, policy and procedures 

• Graphic design software to create promotions and marketing content for social media and 

other communicative outlets. 

• Website development and management, marketing, and analytical tracking 

• Microsoft Office Suite. 

 

 

 

9696



3 

Ability to . . .  

• Execute and maintain successful programs 

• Work with complex number equations 

• Develop departmental goals and objectives and to conduct and implement economic 

development planning activities 

• Establish, analyze, and evaluate operations and develop and implement corrective action 

to resolve problems 

• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with businesses, employees, Board 

of Commissioners, other agencies, and the general public 

• Execute and maintain successful programs. 

• Learn and apply digital tools and programs commonly used in destination development. 

• Set and meet deadlines.  

• Organize time effectively and manage multiple tasks simultaneously. 

• Communicate professionally in both oral and written form. 

• Keep attention to both detail and overall goals. 

• Ability to build strong partnerships locally and regionally. 

• Use initiative and judgment in carrying out tasks and responsibility. 

• Maintain and deliver records, reports, and statistical data. 

• Adjust to priority changes and use good judgement. 

• High degree of discretion in listening and responding to industry stakeholders in the 

context of a competitive environment often with competing interests. 

 

EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE: 

Bachelor’s Degree in business administration, public administration, economics, marketing, public 

relations or relevant field. Maintain certifications and ongoing education relevant to the growth 

and expansion of the department. 

 

A minimum of 5 years’ experience in managerial/business experience of a progressively 

responsible nature, including economic and community development, marketing, budget 

preparation, grant administration and contract administration; or any satisfactory equivalent 

combination of education and experience; as well as at least 3 years’ experience in the public 

sector or government requiring executive management responsibilities and decision making. 

Proven project management, program development, and public administrative skill. Experience 

in economic development, small business, and/or marketing and promotions as well as 

knowledge of destination development, sustainable tourism, and/or hospitality.  

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORK ENVIRONMENT: 

Inside work is performed in an office environment, attendance at meetings outside the 

organization, or at functions. Travel is required and therefore must have a valid Oregon driver 

license.  

 

Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform these 

essential functions. 

9797



1 

 

CURRY COUNTY 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
JOB TITLE: Economic Development Assistant 

 
 
EXEMPT:    No 
SALARY LEVEL: D 
SUPERVISOR: Economic Development Administrator 
PREPARED BY:  Economic Development Administrator    June 2023 
 
 
GENERAL POSITION SUMMARY:  

 

This position serves as the primary contact for the Transient Lodging Tax collection and 

Business License registration programs.  Is also responsible for maintaining economic 

development webpages and social media sites.  Does economic development research as 

directed.   

 

This position is also responsible for processing and upkeep of clerical tasks as directed for the 

economic development department. 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  

 

1. Notifies businesses of the need for a Business License or the need to collect a transient 

lodging tax; processes applications; receipts revenues. 

 

2. Processes all OLCC liquor applications. 

 

3. Assists in the preparation of marketing, advertising, tourism, promotional, visual and 

electronic demonstrations that promote the county’s economic development goals, 

objectives, in recruiting, retaining and expanding business development in Curry County. 

 

4. Assists in preparation of economic development reports, technical research studies, 

prepares statistical reports, presentations and support procurement of data.  

 

5. Creates content and maintains Economic Development social media outlets, website and 

department webpage.  

 
6. Completes administrative tasks for the department, such as: Update and maintain 

procedures, purchasing, processing claims, distribution of mail, maintaining of office 

supplies/equipment, noticing meetings and maintain efficiency of department files and 

electronic drive. 

9898



2 

 

 

7. Serves as the secretary and facilitator of the Tourism and Promotions Committee. 

 

8. Assists with grant acquisition, grant management and grant reporting. 

 
9. Performs special projects, and other duties as assigned by the Coordinator. 

 

10. Work on miscellaneous tasks that further the development of workforce housing. 

 

 

QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

Knowledge of . . . 

• The use of Microsoft 365 and associated programs, remote meeting services, webpage 

and database software  

• Performing detailed research and technical studies and communicating the results in an 

effective manner. 

• Strong knowledge of social media marketing 

 

Ability to . . . 

• Work well with numbers 

• Communicate effectively in oral, written and technological forms 

• Estimate and manage time efficiently 

• Maintain confidentiality 

• Professionally and effectively engage with other employees and the public 

 

Skills in . . . 

• Microsoft Office 365 

• Web and Social Media applications 

• Communications and collaboration efforts 

 

SUPERVISORY CONTROLS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

Work is performed under general direction of the Economic Development Coordinator.  

Recurring routine assignments are independently performed on basis of past experience.   

 

Employee receives general instructions regarding scope of and approach to projects or 

assignments, but problem resolution are left to the employee’s discretion and interpretation.  

Work is directed and reviewed periodically to ensure determinations and decisions are made in 

accordance with department policy and procedures. 

 

9999



3 

 

Work is performed within federal, state, county and departmental laws, rules, policies and 

procedures; software and equipment manuals, specialized dictionaries and reference materials.  

A considerable amount of judgment and initiative is used to interpret these guidelines. 

 

EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE: 

 

High School graduation or equivalent; three years of experience in an office work environment; 

or any satisfactory equivalent combination of education, training and experience. 

 

Desirable Qualifications: 

Knowledge or experience related to County operations; experience working with the public; 

marketing; and community development. 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORK ENVIRONMENT: 

 

Work is typically performed in an office environment, but some work may be performed 

elsewhere in the field 

 

Work is generally sedentary and requires hearing voice conversation and keyboarding, and 

lifting up to thirty-five (35) pounds. A valid Oregon Driver license, or ability to obtain a Oregon 

Driver License within sixty (60) days of hire is required. 

 

Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform 

these essential functions. 

100100



101



 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 
 

 

In the Matter of an Order Adopting a ) 

Position Description for an Existing ) ORDER NO. ___________________ 

Position (Corrections Sergeant)  )       

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of John Ward, County Sheriff, that the attached position 

description be adopted for the following position: 

 

 Corrections Sergeant            S-17/18 
                Position Title                   Range  

 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Curry County, a political subdivision of the State of 

Oregon, is in agreement with the above stated recommendation. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above stated recommendation be in 

effect as of October 19, 2023.  This description replaces any previous description approved for this 

position. 

 

DATED this 19th day of October, 2023 

 

          BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          John Herzog, Chair 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_____________________________      _______________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

 

102102



CURRY COUNTY 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

 

 

JOB TITLE: Corrections Sergeant  
 
 

EXEMPT: No  

SALARY LEVEL: S-17/18  

DOT CODE: 
SUPERVISOR: Lieutenant, Corrections Division 

PREPARED BY: Payroll/Personnel October 2023 
 
 

POSITION SUMMARY: 
 

The Corrections Sergeant serves as the division shift commander, supervising and 
managing the overall operations of the county jail, work release, including the care, 
custody, and control of all adults in custody. Provides assistance and supervision to 
assigned personnel.  
 
This is a supervisory position with some administrative responsibilities requiring the 
application of personnel management and organizational principles and specialized 
knowledge in the area of law enforcement methods, systems, and procedures. 
Requires the performance of complex operations with considerable latitude for 
independent actions and decisions.  
 
Errors in judgment or irresponsible behavior by the incumbent or other staff members 
may have a major impact on the safety and civil rights of an offender, civilian 
population, and fellow officers. Errors in judgment and behavior could result in legal 
actions against the county and may involve the individual in a personal legal liability. 
Work is performed under the supervision of the Lieutenant, Corrections Division who 
provides general instructions and guidelines, but allows the incumbent considerable 
responsibility to determine the manner of performance. 

 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 
Examples of Work: (Illustrative only) 

 
An employee in this classification may perform any of the following duties. However, 
these examples do not include all specific tasks which the employee may be expected 
to perform. 

 
1. Supervises corrections personnel and makes 
recommendations on personnel actions such as hiring, termination, 
discipline, promotions, and merit increases. Recommendations are 
reviewed by the Lieutenant, Corrections Division and forwarded to the Sheriff for 
final decision. 

103103



CURRY COUNTY 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

 

 

JOB TITLE: Corrections Sergeant  - Page 2 
 

Examples of Work: (cont.) 
 

2. Supervises and manages the work release and work alternative 
programs. Investigates and screens individuals for the programs. 

 
3.  Schedules corrections staff for days off, vacations, compensatory 

time off, and relief during sickness. Perform annual performance 
evaluations. 

 
4.       May issue oral and/or written reprimands and limited suspensions 

of employees assigned as necessary. 
 
5.       Review written reports prepared by staff for completeness and 

proper procedures.  
 

6. Supervises training and development for all staff members. 
 

7. Ensures that the meals are prepared properly and that they are of 
sufficient quantity and quality. 

 
8. Ensures that medical treatment and cleanliness of the facility are in 
compliance with Oregon Revised Statues and Oregon Jail Standards. 

 
9. Maintains a current update status on all emergency plans such as riot, fire 
and escape. 

 
10. Ensures that supplies and equipment are adequate for the administrative 
needs and care, custody and control of the adults in custody, work release and 
work alternative centers. 

 
11. Maintains jail standards for inspection at any time from County 
Commissioners, Grand Jury, Health Department, State Jail Inspectors, 
Fire Departments, departmental administration, and special interest 
groups or individuals. 

 
12. Receives and reviews complaints from the adults in custody. Provides 
special visitation for unusual circumstances. 

 
13. Reviews and monitors release dates of prisoners. 

 

14. Monitors requests from adults in custody for entry into or out of, 
county work release and custody worker programs. 

 
      15.      Work with other law enforcement agencies for AIC Transports

104104



CURRY COUNTY 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

JOB TITLE: CORRECTIONS Sergeant  - Page 3 

 

 

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 
An employee in this classification is responsible for first line supervision of corrections 
personnel. Assigns specific duties, reviews performance, and responds to problems or 
questions raised by subordinate staff. Reviews reports and other written documents and 
recommends disciplinary action. May issue and document oral and/or written reprimands 
and limited suspensions of employees assigned. 

 
QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS: 

 
Knowledge of- 

 
All phases of modern corrections operations, and the ability to communicate that 
knowledge effectively in emergent and/or stressful situations.  
 
Practices and methods employed in law enforcement administration. 

 
Principles of modern corrections and methodology of operating a corrections 
facility. 
 
Principles of supervision, human relations, organization and administration as 
applicable. 
 
Vicarious liability of correctional institutions and settings. 
 
Knowledge of personnel rules, union contracts and negotiations. 

 

 
Ability to- 

 
Instruct and direct the work of others. 

 
Communicate effectively both verbally and in writing. 

 
Develop and maintain effective working relationships with other law enforcement 
agencies, departmental staff and the general public. 

 
Prepare accurate and complete reports. 

Perform mathematical calculations accurately.  

Skill in- 

 
Operation of law enforcement equipment: firearms, cameras, recorders, 
computers, automotive and radio equipment. 105105



CURRY COUNTY 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

JOB TITLE: CORRECTIONS Sergeant  - Page 4 

 

 
EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE: 

 
High school graduation or equivalency; four years’ experience in law enforcement, 
preferable in a correctional setting; or any satisfactory equivalent combination 
of experience and training which demonstrates the ability to perform the above-
described duties. 

 
SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS: 

 
Possession of an Intermediate Certificate in Corrections from the Department of  Public 
Safety Standards and Training (DPSST) within 2 years of appointment 
 
Possession of a Supervisory Certificate in Corrections within 2 years of appointment 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 

 
Reasonable accommodation will be made to enable individuals with disabilities to 
perform these essential functions. 

 
Curry County Sheriff’s Office (CCSO) complies with the Federal Prison Rape 
Elimination Act (PREA). PREA prohibits CCSO from hiring, or promoting anyone who 
has engaged in, been convicted of, or been civilly or administratively adjudicated for 
engaging in sexual abuse in Institution settings. These include a jail, prison, or other 
correctional facility (including juvenile corrections) AND any institution or facility where 
people are residing for the purpose of receiving care or treatment (e.g., adjudicated 
delinquent, neglected, placed in State custody, mentally ill or disabled, chronically ill, or 
physically disabled, etc.). These include skilled nursing care, intermediate or long-term 
care, or custodial or residential care (e.g., group home, rehabilitation, assisted 
living/nursing home, hospice, etc.). 

 
This standard requires CCSO to conduct background checks on all applicants 
considered for employment or promotion to consider any incidents of substantiated 
allegations of sexual abuse or sexual harassment in determining whether to hire or 
promote anyone who may have contact with inmates. 

 
For more information regarding PREA please visit: http//nicic.gov/PREA. 

106106



 
 

 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REQUEST FOR AGENDA ITEM  
BUSINESS MEETING 
 

Agenda Date: Agenda Item Title: 

 October 19, 2023   Re-hire of an Employee – Planning Director – B. Crockett 

         

        

Time Needed: 

 2 minutes    

Financial Impact: Description and Background: 

 n/a      Becky Crockett would like to participate in the PERS: Work 

After Retirement Program.  This would continue her employment as  

A PERS retiree effective November 1, 2023.    

         

         

         

Category: 

☐            Action/Discussion 

☒                             Consent 

☐            Executive Session 

☐                         Hire Order 

☐                     Presentation 

Requested Motion: 
 

 Approve the re-hire of Becky Crockett         

           

Attachments: Instructions Once Approved: 

1. Order     

2.      

3.       

4.       

5.        

 File with the Clerk’s Office     

         

         

         

          

Contact Person – Name and Department: Date Submitted: 

 Julie Swift – Payroll & HR      October 9, 2023 

 

107



BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

In the Matter of an Order Approving ) 

The Re-Hire of an Employee ) ORDER NO. ___________________ 

WHEREAS, Becky Crockett was reclassified to the position of Post Planning Director – 

Special Projects January 3, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Director position was vacated January 14, 2022, and she has been 

acting in that capacity since then; and  

WHEREAS, she would like to participate in the PERS: Work after Retirement program. 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Michael E. Fitzgerald, Director of County Operations, 

that Becky Crockett be re-hired to the position of Post Planning Director – Special Projects, at 

her current rate of pay of $7124/month. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Curry County, a political subdivision of the State 

of Oregon, is in agreement with the above stated recommendation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above stated hire be in effect as of 

October 31, 2023; notwithstanding, however, that such employment shall be subject to the terms 
and conditions set forth in the Employment Contract between parties, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

DATED this 19th day of October, 2023      BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

     _______________________________________ 

     John Herzog, Chair 

     _______________________________________ 

     Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

Approved as to Form: 

_____________________________      _______________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

108



 
 

 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REQUEST FOR AGENDA ITEM  
BUSINESS MEETING 
 

Agenda Date: Agenda Item Title: 

 October 19, 2023   Adopt a Position Description for a Existing Position - Department 

Specialist II        

      

Time Needed: 

 2 minutes    

Financial Impact: Description and Background: 

 n/a     This order would adopt an updated description for the position of 

Department Specialist II in the Clerk’s Office.    

         

         

         

   

Category: 

☐            Action/Discussion 

☒                             Consent 

☐            Executive Session 

☐                         Hire Order 

☐                     Presentation 

Requested Motion: 
 

 Approve the position description for Department Specialist II      

              

Attachments: Instructions Once Approved: 

1. Order     

2. Description     

3.  

4.       

5.        

 File with the Clerk’s Office     

         

         

         

          

Contact Person – Name and Department: Date Submitted: 

 Julie Swift – Payroll & HR      October 9, 2023 

 

109



 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 
 

 

In the Matter of an Order Adopting a ) 

Position Description for an Existing ) ORDER NO. ___________________ 

Position (Department Specialist II)  )       

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Shelley Denney, County Clerk, that the attached position 

description be adopted for the following position: 

 

 Department Specialist II    B 
                Position Title                   Range  

 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Curry County, a political subdivision of the State of 

Oregon, is in agreement with the above stated recommendation. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above stated recommendation be in 

effect as of October 19, 2023.  This description replaces any previous description approved for this 

position. 

 

DATED this 19th day of October, 2023 

 

          BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          John Herzog, Chair 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_____________________________      _______________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

 

110



1 
 

CURRY COUNTY 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
JOB TITLE:  County Clerk Department Specialist II 

 

EXEMPT: No  
SALARY LEVEL: B  
SUPERVISOR: Curry County Clerk  
PREPARED BY Curry County Clerk September 2023 

 

GENERAL POSITION SUMMARY: 
 

Acts as support staff to the Clerk’s Office under direct supervision of the Clerk.  The 
Department Specialist II performs advanced and complex clerical duties to support staff 
within the Recording/Election Divisions. 
 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

 
1. Serves as initial contact for the department and gathers information from the public 

necessary to initiate records and services. Assists the public in ascertaining what 
documents they may want; searches for recorded documents; provides accurate and 
complete photocopies.  
 

2. Researches, prepares, and composes letters, reports, notifications, documents, 
memos, and other materials of an important or confidential nature. 

 
3. Collects fees using the up-to-date fee collection schedule.  Deposits to the bank all 

collected fees and submits appropriate reports to the Treasurer’s Office. 
 
4. Delivers and retrieves mail, communications, reports, and financial items to and from 

the courthouse and annex buildings. 
 
5. Maintains supply inventory in cooperation with staff. 

 

6. Prepares claims for payment for submission to Account Payable 
 

7. Designs and maintains web pages for County Clerk’s Recording/Elections Divisions. 
 

 

SUPERVISORY CONTROLS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

No supervisory responsibilities.  Supervised by Curry County Clerk.  

111



2 
 

QUALIFICATIONS REQUIREMENTS: 

 

 Knowledge of… 

• Various filing systems including alphabetical, numerical and chronological. 

• Business English, spelling, punctuation, and arithmetic 

• General office practices and procedures 

• Various software programs including QuickBooks, MS Word/Outlook, and MS 
Excel 

Ability to… 

• Work well with computers and produce desired results. 

• Operate and oversee maintenance of standard office equipment including 
computers, printers, scanner, calculator/adding machine, photocopier, telephone 
answering machine, telephone system, cash register, safe, microphone system 
and tape recorder for board meeting, breakroom equipment and utensils, electric 
pencil sharpener, radio, etc.… 

• Prioritize work and function during many activities. 

• Organize, file, and retrieve materials and documents; follow verbal and written 
instructions; perform basic mathematical operations; work effectively with other 
employees. 

• Deal with the public courteously and calmly during all types of situations, 
remembering to put the public first. 

• Willingness and ability to receive and follow instruction in procedures. 
 
EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE: 
 
High School graduation or equivalency or any satisfactory equivalent combination of 
experience and training which demonstrates the ability to perform the above-described 
duties. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 
Work in this class involves the operation of a computer, typewriter, calculator, copy 
machine and other standard office equipment as well as specialized equipment. 
 
Reasonable accommodation may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to 
perform these essential functions. 

112



113



BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 

In the Matter of an Order Rescinding 

Order No. 23243 and Re-Assigning Back-

Up Signatory Authority 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

ORDER NO. ___________ 

 

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2023, back-up signatory authority was assigned to Michael E. 

Fitzgerald, Director of County Operations, pursuant to Order No. 23243; and 

 

WHEREAS, due to the departure of the Finance Director, the Director of County Operations 

assumed review and approval of accounts payable claims because there was no other individual to 

fill that role; and 

 

WHERAS, since the date of Order No. 23243, the County has hired a Deputy Treasurer; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to retain separation of powers, the County Treasurer has recommended that 

the Deputy Treasurer be assigned back-up signatory authority. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

 

1.  Nicholas Vicino, Deputy Treasurer, is assigned back-up signatory authority for the Curry 

County Umpqua Bank Accounts, effective the date of this Order. 

 

2. Order No. 23243 assigning signatory authority for Michael E. Fitzgerald, Director of 

County Operations, is rescinded, effective the date of this Order.  

 

DATED this 18th day of October, 2023. 

 

          BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

          _____________________________________________ 

          John Herzog, Chair 

 

 

          _____________________________________________ 

          Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

______________________________     _____________________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

 

114



115



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

In the Matter of an Order Adopting the 

Rules of Order 

) 

) 

) 

ORDER NO. ___________ 

WHEREAS, Curry County Board of Commissioners’ hold an array of meetings; and 

WHEREAS, “Democratic Rules of Order” provides information and rules to keep order during 

meetings; and 

WHEREAS, The Board desires to conduct meetings following the “Rules of Order” to maximize 

efficiency by creating structure establishing a set of rules; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT Curry County Board of 

Commissioners adopt the Democratic Rules of Order as a guideline for all Curry County meetings. 

DATED this 19th day of October, 2023. BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Approved as to Form: 

_______________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738 

Curry County Legal Counsel 

_________________________________________ 

John Herzog, Chair 

_________________________________________ 

Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

_________________________________________ 

Jay Trost, Commissioner 

110116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



*Provider location counts are provided by the Network to Nippon Life Benefits. The Network is responsible for the accuracy of the numbers 

provided.

1
Nippon Life Benefits is responsible for its own financial condition and contractual obligations.

WE CAN MEET ALL YOUR ANCILLARY NEEDS.

Disability

Dental

We provide unique and flexible dental solutions designed to stretch your benefit dollars, while offering

comprehensive coverage with extraordinary service. We have standard plans, MAC plans, and a new series like

nothing else in the industry – Dental Dimension. 

Dental Networks:*

• Aetna Dental® Administrators with over 160,000 provider locations nationwide.

• First Dental Health (CA only) with over 29,000 provide locations in California

Life

We offer affordable Basic, Dependent and Supplemental Life insurance coverage to employees and their families.

Let us protect what matters most to you. 

Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D)

We provide your employees with Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) coverage for only pennies per

month. With AD&D, employees receive additional coverage for the accidental loss of life, limb(s), or eyesight.

Nippon Life Benefits is grounded in our Japanese heritage. The hallmarks of our business are based on respect,

honor, and dignity. This is what makes us unique. This is what sets us apart.

Founded in 1991, we are the United States subsidiary of Nippon Life Insurance Company of Japan
1
, one of the

world's largest mutual life insurance companies . Nippon Life Benefits has an "A-"(Excellent) rating from AM

Best (current as of January 2018).

We believe in delivering the highest level of service possible to you and your employees. We offer multi-lingual 

customer support , in both language and culture, in English, Japanese, Korean, and Spanish.

Nippon Life Insurance Company of America® - marketing name Nippon Life Benefits®, NAIC number 81264, licensed & authorized in all 

states plus DC, except not ME, NH or WY, domiciled in Iowa, with a principal place of business at 655 Third Avenue, 16th floor, NY, NY 

10017-9113, Member Company of Nippon Life Insurance Company of Japan (“Nissay”).  

Nippon Life Benefits offers Short-Term and Long-Term disability coverage, which includes an exceptional return-

to-work claims process. 

Vision (powered by EyeMed)

Vision insurance from Nippon Life Benefits makes it easy and inexpensive for employees to get regular eye

exams. Vision coverage includes an allowance toward exams, lenses, frames, and contacts. The EyeMed Insight

network has 87,000+ total providers*. 

Online Benefit Management for You and Your Employees

Nippon Life Benefits simplifies benefit management for you and your employees through our easy-to-use

website, www.nipponlifebenefits.com. Additionally, we offer a mobile app that assists members with their

medical, dental, and vision coverage. It is easy to use and always available when on the go!

• DenteMax with over 275,000 provider locations nationwide

Quote ID: 0530577-01 Proposal to Curry County Effective: 1/1/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

219225



Plan Name

Benefit Rounding

Accidental Death & 

Dismemberment

Guarantee Issue        

up to

Portability

Waiver of Premium 

Definition

Accelerated Death 

Benefits

Age Reduction Schedule

Age 55 and younger

Age 55 to 59

Age 60 to 64

Age 65 to 69

Age 70 to 74

Age 75 and older

Basic Life Rate

Basic AD&D Rate

Rate Guarantee

Basic Life Volume

Monthly Premium

Basic Life

Basic AD&D

Dependent Life

Plan Selection

Basic Life

Not Included

Included 
Except for Life Benefit of  less than $10,000.

25%

$0.15 Per $1000

$0.02 Per $1000

$1,400,000

Waiver if disabled prior to 60, terms at 

normal retirement age

2 Years

$210.00

$28.00

None

NLB Life 1

Same as Basic: Standard Non-Occ

Under Age 70 $200,000: Age 70+ Lessor 

of $20,000 or amount after Age Reduction 

Schedule

Life Benefit By Class

75%

35%

100%

100%

100%

Flat Amount | Flat Amount

Up to Next $1000

Bonuses and commissions are not included in annual earnings.

Class Description Lawmen | Others

Maximum/Minimum $15,000 | $10,000

Life Benefits

Premium rates shown/proposed are not guaranteed.  Depending on the coverage the rates are based on the census data provided, the 

participation assumed, the SIC code,  the employees locations, and the quoted benefit design as well as other assumptions made in order to 

produce this proposal.  Modifications to any of assumptions could cause an adjustment to the final rates.  Therefore, all quoted rates are subject to 

change or modification and are subject to final underwriting approval by Nippon Life Insurance Company of America.



Quote ID: 0530577-01 Proposal to Curry County Effective: 1/1/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

220226



Supplemental Life 
Supplemental Life must be sold with NLB Basic Life Product.

Benefit

Employee

- Minimum

Spouse

Spouse benefit election may not exceed 50% of the employee benefit

- Minimum

Child

- Minimum

Employee AD&D Same as above

Dependent AD&D Same as above

Member must elect Supplemental Life to also get AD&D

Guaranteed Issue

Employee age under 70 $100,000 

Employee age 70 and over Lessor of $10,000 or amount after Age Reduction Schedule

Spouse $50,000

Spouse age 70 and over Lessor of 1/2 of employee amount or $10,000

Child $10,000

Benefit reduction at age 65-69 75%, 70-74 35%, 75+ 25%

Portability is included.

Employee must contribute at least 50% of the premium.

Spouse premium will be billed based on employee date of birth.

Employee's Age 

Bracket Lives Volume

Employee 

Rate

Spouse 

Lives

Spouse 

Volume

Spouse 

Rate

Child 

Volume

Child 

Rate

24 and younger 3 $60,000 $0.06 0 $0 $0.05 $0 $0.14

25 to 29 10 $200,000 $0.04 0 $0 $0.04 $0 $0.14

30 to 34 8 $160,000 $0.04 0 $0 $0.04 $0 $0.14

35 to 39 13 $260,000 $0.06 0 $0 $0.06 $0 $0.14

40 to 44 15 $300,000 $0.10 0 $0 $0.08 $0 $0.14

45 to 49 7 $140,000 $0.15 0 $0 $0.14 $0 $0.14

50 to 54 5 $100,000 $0.23 0 $0 $0.20 $0 $0.14

55 to 59 8 $160,000 $0.34 0 $0 $0.29 $0 $0.14

60 to 64 5 $100,000 $0.47 0 $0 $0.50 $0 $0.14

65 to 69 5 $100,000 $0.84 0 $0 $0.85 $0 $0.14

70 to 74 0 $0 $1.28 0 $0 $1.38 $0 $0.14

75 to 79 0 $0 $2.07 0 $0 $2.87 $0 $0.14

80+ 0 $0 $3.71 0 $0 $4.08 $0 $0.14

Employee Spouse Child

Total Premium $293.00 $0.00 $0.00

Rates Guaranteed for 2 Years

Employee AD&D Rate/$1000 (additional) 0.02$          

Spouse AD&D Rate/$1000 (additional) 0.02$          

Child AD&D Rate/$1000 (additional) 0.09$          

Any proposal on which the sum of Basic Life and Supplemental Life exceeds $1,000,000 must receive explicit Nippon Life Benefit Home 

Office approval in writing before being accepted.

Increment Amount of $5,000 up to maximum of $300,000

Increment Amount of $1,000 up to maximum of $10,000

Increment Amount of $5,000 up to maximum of $50,000

An eligible employee is required to work a minimum of 30 hours per week.

A minimum 25% participation required with a minimum of 5 enrolled lives must be met in order to write Supplemental Life coverage.

Retired Employees are not eligible.

Waiver if disabled prior to 60, terms at normal retirement age

Child benefit election may not exceed 50% of the spouse benefit, or if there is no spouse 

election then benefit cannot exceed 25% of the employee's election.

$20,000

$10,000

$2,000

Subject to Home Office Approval, Employee's benefit cannot exceed four times salary

Quote ID: 0530577-01 Proposal to Curry County Effective: 1/1/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

221227



Plan Selection

Premium rates shown/proposed are not guaranteed.  Depending on the coverage the rates are based on the census data provided, the participation assumed, the 

SIC code,  he employees locations, and the quoted benefit design as well as other assumptions made in order to produce this proposal.  Modifications to any of 

assumptions could cause an adjustment to the final rates.  Therefore, all quoted rates are subject to change or modification and are subject to final underwriting 

approval by Nippon Life Insurance Company of America.

Quote ID: 0530577-01 Proposal to Curry County Effective: 1/1/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

222228



229



230



231



1/1/2024

o

o

o

o

Curry County

Supplemental Life/Voluntary 

Basic Life

I acknowledge that I am executing this proposal for each Plan Selection elected on behalf of the above-

referenced employer, and that I have the legal authority to bind the employer for whom each Plan 

proposal is being made. I further understand and acknowledge the following:

Plan features, options, combinations, availability, rates, and benefits may vary by location. 

Exclusions and limitations apply – the plan documents provide a complete description of 

benefits, exclusions, limitations and conditions of coverage.

Plan features are subject to change.

Nothing herein is a guarantee of benefits or eligibility. All terms, provisions, conditions, 

limitations and exclusions shown in the issued booklet-certificate and master policy will 

govern. All content included herein is subject to change without notice.

Premium rates shown/proposed are not guaranteed or final, are subject to 

change/modification by Nippon Life Insurance Company of America, and are subject to 

final underwriting approval by Nippon Life Insurance Company of America.

I acknowledge that I am electing the following coverages:

Please return all pages of this proposal (including this signature page) to Nippon Life 

Benefits to confirm acceptance of each Plan proposal.

Effective Date:

[Title]

[Date]

[Signature]

_______________________________

_______________________________

_______________________________

_______________________________

_______________________________

The employer hereby accepts the proposal for each Plan Selection elected, subject to the terms and 

conditions herein and of each applicable Plan proposal.

[Employer Name]

[Printed Name]

Quote ID: 0530577-01 Proposal to Curry County Effective: 1/1/2024

(  ) We are requesting enrollment in Lifeworks Employee Assistance Plan (EAP) for 
all full-time, eligible employees regardless of enrollment status with Nippon Life 
Benefits. We accept the $1.15 per employee per month charge. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

Julie Swift

226232



233



234



235



236



237



238



 
 

2 

Electronic Services Agreement 
 

Nippon Life Insurance Company of America (Nippon Life Benefits) has issued one or more group insurance policies. 
 
A. Policyholder desires that booklet-certificates relating to the Policies be sent and received by electronic transactions 

("Electronic Records"), consistent with applicable law. 

B. Policyholder  desires  that correspondence  relating  to the Policies  be sent and received  by electronic  

transactions (“Electronic Records”) consistent with applicable law. 
 

Administrative Functions 
A. The Policyholder will: 

1. Furnish paper copies of the booklet-certificate to all participants who request a paper copy. 

2. If plan documents are available to multiple classes of participants, ensure that each participant knows and is 

aware of what plan documents cover each participant. 

3. If the Policyholder terminates its insurance agreement with Nippon Life Benefits, the Policyholder will inform all 

participants and beneficiaries of this termination.  The Policyholder will inform all participants and beneficiaries 

that the booklet-certificate will remain on-line for a limited period of time (3-months) following termination. The 

Policyholder will inform all participants and beneficiaries of the need to obtain paper copies of the booklet for the 

terminated policy. 
 

General Provisions 
A. Policyholder shall perform this Agreement consistent with all Federal and State law, including, but not limited to, 

ERISA. 

B. There is no employer-employee or agency relationship between the Policyholder and Nippon Life Benefits.  

C. Nippon Life Benefits will send all notices required by law electronically, unless such notices are required to be sent 

by paper. 

D. Policyholder and Nippon Life Benefits acknowledge and agree that whenever electronic transactions are not possible, 

transactions will be conducted in a manner that is consistent with insurance industry standards or another mutually 

agreed upon method. 

E. Policyholder may request notices or documents be provided or made available in paper or another non-electronic 

form at no additional cost by submitting a written request to Nippon Life Benefits at admin-

info@nipponlifebenefits.com or to PO Box 25951 Shawnee Mission, KS  66225-5951. 

F. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York. 

G. The duties and obligations of this Agreement are neither assignable nor alienable by either Party without the consent, 

in writing, of the other Party. 

H. This Agreement may be amended by mutual consent, in writing, by the Parties. Either one of the Parties may 

terminate this Agreement upon notice. Absent any such termination, this Agreement shall renew automatically and 

annually on the anniversary of its effective date. 
 

Policyholder Electronic Enrollment Terms and Conditions 
 

You have elected to utilize electronic enrollment for your employees and their families. We agree to accept 
member/dependent enrollment and eligibility data (e.g. census) via electronic delivery. 
 

The following conditions apply: 
 

  Policyholder acknowledges that electronically submitted enrollment, eligibility, waiver, election or other data is not a 

guarantee of benefits or eligibility, and that all terms, provisions, conditions, limitations and exclusions shown in the 

certificate booklet and master policy will govern. Policyholder agrees to provide up-to-date and accurate census or 

other electronic enrollment, eligibility, waiver, election or other related data that will include all required and current 

member/dependent information and elections in a format approved by Nippon Life Benefits®.  Nippon Life Insurance 

Company of America® relies upon the information submitted electronically being complete, accurate and up-to-date. 

PLEASE NOTE that the above information will only be accepted in census format for new enrollments, or for 

enrollment, eligibility, waiver, election and/or other related changes to existing members/dependents insured by 

Nippon Life Insurance Company of America. The changes should be easily identified.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

233239



 
 

3 

 Policyholder agrees to make timely updates and correct errors according to Nippon Life Insurance Company of 

America’s standard eligibility practices, i.e., eService, or to submit paper enrollment forms for each 

member/dependent who is being added, terminated or corrected. Policyholder agrees to maintain and retain copies 

(paper or electronic) of actual enrollment forms and waiver of coverage forms (and other necessary records) from 

each eligible employee/dependent to enable Nippon Life Insurance Company of America to determine the current 

classification, benefits, and termination data for each insured person.  

 

 Policyholder agrees that all beneficiary designations must be maintained by the Policyholder and must be provided 

to Nippon Life Insurance Company of America. THE POLICYHOLDER HEREBY AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, 

DEFEND AND HOLD HARMLESS NIPPON LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA AND ITS RESPECTIVE 

OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, AGENTS, ADVISERS AND REPRESENTATIVES, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 

against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs, charges, or claims arising out of or related to this Agreement 

or as a result of the Policyholder’s breach, errors, and/or omissions in enrollment/eligibility/waiver/benefits or other 

required data submitted electronically. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement and continue in 

perpetuity. 

 
Please carefully review your Nippon Life Insurance Company of America premium statement(s) produced after 
the enrollment, eligibility, waiver, election and/or other related information has been submitted. Please provide 
us with any updates or corrections to admin-info@nipponlifebenefits.com or 800-374-1835 ext. 43780 or via 
facsimile at 913-387-5920 within 30 days of the premium statement date.   
 

 
Electronic Services & Enrollment Election  

 
Please check below if applicable based on your election(s): 
 

     Electronic Services Agreement (if you elected to receive group plan documents and/or correspondence electronically) 

Through its above election, elections made within the Electronic Services Agreement, and its execution of this 
Signature Page, the Policyholder acknowledges, understands and agrees to the terms and conditions set forth in the 
Electronic Services Agreement. By signing below, the Policyholder represents that the undersigned is authorized to 
sign this Agreement and bind the Policyholder. 

 
    Policyholder Electronic Enrollment Terms and Conditions (if you wish to elect and utilize electronic enrollment) 

Through its above election and its execution of this Signature Page, the Policyholder acknowledges, understands and 
agrees to the terms and conditions set forth in the Policyholder Electronic Enrollment Terms and Conditions. By signing 
below, the Policyholder represents that the undersigned is authorized to sign this Agreement and bind the Policyholder. 

    

Group Name: 
 
___________________________________ 
  

Policyholder Signature: 
 
_____________________________ 

Date: 
 
___________________________________ 

Job Title: 
 
_____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

X

X

234240



Notice of Privacy Practices for Protected 
Health Information (HIPAA)

THIS NOTICE DESCRIBES HOW MEDICAL INFORMATION ABOUT 
YOU MAY BE USED AND DISCLOSED AND HOW YOU CAN GET 
ACCESS TO THIS INFORMATION.  PLEASE REVIEW IT CAREFULLY.

This Notice describes how your medical information obtained in 
connection with your health benefit plan administration may be 
used and disclosed and how you can access the information.  The 
terms of this Notice apply to current and former plan members 
and dependents for their group medical expense, group dental 
expense and/or group vision care expense insurance. This Notice 
was effective April 14, 2003 and has been revised most recently 
effective November 1, 2015.

We are required by law to maintain the privacy of our current and 
former members’ and dependents’ protected health information,
to provide notice of our legal duties and privacy practices with 
respect to protected health information, and to notify affected 
individuals following a breach of unsecured protected health 
information. We are required to abide by the terms of this Notice 
as long as it remains in effect. We reserve the right to change the 
terms of this Notice as necessary and to make the new Notice 
effective for all protected health information maintained by us.

Copies of any revised Notices will be mailed to plan sponsors for 
distribution to the members then covered by the plan. You have 
the right to request a paper copy of the Notice, although you may 
have originally requested a copy of the Notice electronically by 
e-mail.

USES AND DISCLOSURES OF YOUR PERSONAL HEALTH 
INFORMATION

Authorization 
Except as explained below, we will not use or disclose your 
protected health information for any purpose unless you have 
signed an authorization form. You have the right to revoke an 
authorization by written request to: Privacy Officer, Nippon Life 
Insurance Company of America®, P.O. Box 25951, Shawnee 
Mission, Kansas 66225-5951. Your request will be honored upon 
receipt by us.

Disclosures for Treatment
We may disclose your protected health information as necessary 
for your treatment.  For instance, a doctor or healthcare facility 
involved in your care may request your protected health 
information in our possession to assist in your care.

Uses and Disclosures for Payment
We may use and disclose your protected health information as 
necessary for payment purposes. For instance, we may use it to 
process or pay claims, to exercise legal subrogation rights, to 
perform a Precertification, to determine whether services are for 
medically necessary, or to perform prospective reviews. We may 
also forward information to another insurer in order for them to 
process or pay claims on your behalf.

Uses and Disclosures for Health Care Operations
We may use and disclose your protected health information as 
necessary for health care operations. For instance, we may use or 
disclose your protected health information for quality assessment 
and quality improvement, premium rating (when allowable by 
law), conducting or arranging for medical review or compliance. 
We may also disclose your protected health information to another 
insurer, health care facility or health care provider for activities 
such as quality assurance or case management. We participate 
in an organized health care arrangement with your health plan. 
Your health plan may have its own privacy practices that are not 
reflected in this Notice. We may disclose your protected health 
information to your health plan for its health care operations. We 
may contact your health care providers concerning prescription 
drug or treatment alternatives.

Other Health-Related Uses and Disclosures
We may contact you to provide reminders for appointments; 
information about treatment alternatives; or other health-related 
programs, products or services that may be available to you.

Information Received Pre-enrollment
We may request and receive from you and your health care 
providers protected health information prior to your enrollment 
under the group policy.  When allowable by law, we may use this 
information to determine rates.  If you do not enroll, we will not use 
or disclose the information we obtained about you for any other 
purpose. Information provided on enrollment forms or applications 
will be utilized for all coverages being applied for, some of which 
may be protected by the state privacy laws.

Genetic Information
We will not use or disclose any genetic information we obtain 
about you in any regard, including underwriting purposes.

Business Associate
Certain aspects and components of our insurance services are 
performed by outside vendors known as ‘Business Associates.’ 
Business Associates are under an independent duty to safeguard 
your privacy. Additionally we require them to sign a Business 
Associate Agreement, which is a contract to adhere to our privacy 
practices.

Plan Sponsor
We may disclose your protected health information to the 
plan sponsor, provided that the plan sponsor certifies that the 
information will be used and maintained in a compliant confidential 
manner and will not be utilized or disclosed for employment-related 
actions or decisions or in connection with any other benefit plan of 
the plan sponsor

Family, Friends and Personal Representatives
With your approval, we may disclose to family members, close 
personal friends, or another person you identify, your protected 
health information relevant to their involvement with your health 
care or paying for your care. If you are unavailable, incapacitated, 
or involved in an emergency situation, and we determine that a 
limited disclosure is in your best interests, we may disclose your 
protected health information without your approval. We may also 
disclose your protected health information to public or private 
entities to assist in disaster relief efforts.

NLB 30066 • (11/15)Annual Privacy Notice

Page 1 of 2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

235241



Other Uses and Disclosures
We are permitted or required by law to use or disclose your 
protected health information, without your authorization, in the 
following circumstances:
• For any purpose required by law;
•  For public health activities (for example, reporting of disease,

injury, birth, death or suspicion of child abuse or neglect);
•  To a governmental authority if we believe an individual is a

victim of abuse, neglect or domestic violence;
•  For health oversight activities (for example, audits, inspections,

licensure actions or civil, administrative or criminal proceedings
or actions);

•  For judicial or administrative proceedings (for example, pursuant
to a court order, subpoena or discovery request);

•  For law enforcement purposes (for example, reporting wounds
or injuries or for identifying or locating suspects, witnesses or
missing people);

•  To coroners and funeral directors;
•  For procurement, banking or transplantation of organ, eye or

tissue donations;
•  For certain research purposes;
•  To avert a serious threat to health or safety under certain

circumstances;
•  For military activities if you are a member of the armed forces;

for intelligence or national security issues; or about an inmate
or an individual to a correctional institution or law enforcement
official having custody; and

•  For compliance with workers’ compensation programs.

We will adhere to all state and federal laws or regulations that 
provide additional privacy protections. We will only use or 
disclose AIDS/HIV-related information, genetic testing information 
and information pertaining to your mental condition or any 
substance abuse problems as permitted by state and federal law or 
regulation.

Uses and Disclosures Requiring Authorization
We are required by law to obtain your authorization prior to using 
or disclosing your protected health information in the following 
circumstances:
•  Uses and disclosures of protected health information for

marketing purposes.
•  Uses and disclosures that constitute the sale of protected health

information.
•  Most uses and disclosures of psychotherapy notes.
•  Other uses and disclosures not described in this notice will

be made only with the individual’s written authorization. An
individual may revoke an authorization, provided that the
revocation is in writing and we have not taken action in reliance
upon the authorization.

YOUR RIGHTS

Restrictions on Use and Disclosure of Your Personal 
Health Information
You have the right to request restrictions on how we use or disclose 
your protected health information for treatment, payment or health 
care operations. You also have the right to request restrictions on 

disclosures to family members or others who are involved in your 
care or the paying of your care. To request a restriction, you must 
send a written request to: Privacy Officer, Nippon Life Insurance 
Company of America, PO Box 25951, Shawnee Mission, Kansas 
66225-5951. We are not required to agree to your request for 
a restriction. If your request for a restriction is granted, you will 
receive a written acknowledgement from us.

Receiving Confidential Communications of Your 
Personal Health Information
You have the right to request communications regarding your 
protected health information from us by alternative means (for 
example by fax) or at alternative locations. We will accommodate 
reasonable requests. To request a confidential communication, 
you must send a written request to: Privacy Officer, Nippon Life 
Insurance Company of America, P.O. Box 25951, Shawnee 
Mission, Kansas 66225-5951. 

Access to Your Protected Health Information
You have the right to inspect and/or obtain a copy of your 
protected health information we maintain in your designated record 
set, with some exceptions. To request access to your information, 
you must send a written request to: Privacy Officer, Nippon Life 
Insurance Company of America, P.O. Box 25951, Shawnee 
Mission, Kansas 66225-5951. A fee may be charged for copying 
and postage.

Amendment of Your Protected Health Information
You have the right to request an amendment to your protected 
health information to correct inaccuracies. To request an 
amendment, you must send a written request to: Privacy Officer, 
Nippon Life Insurance Company of America, P.O. Box 25951, 
Shawnee Mission, Kansas 66225-5951. We are not required to 
grant the request in certain circumstances.

Accounting of Disclosures of Your Protected Health 
Information
You have the right to receive an accounting of certain disclosures 
made by us after April 14, 2003, of your protected health 
information. To request an accounting, you must send a written 
request to: Privacy Officer, Nippon Life Insurance Company of 
America, P.O. Box 25951, Shawnee Mission, Kansas 66225- 
5951. The first accounting in any 12-month period will be free; 
however, a fee may be charged for any subsequent request for an 
accounting during that same time period.

Complaints
If you believe your privacy rights have been violated, you can 
send a written complaint to us at Grievance Coordinator, Nippon 
Life Insurance Company of America, P.O. Box 25951, Shawnee 
Mission, Kansas 66225-5951 or to the Secretary of the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services. There will be no 
retaliation for filing a complaint.

If you have any questions or need any assistance regarding this 
Notice or your privacy rights, you may call Nippon Life Insurance 
Company of America at: English and Non-English (800) 374- 
1835; Japanese (800) 971-0638; or Korean (877) 827-8713.

NLB 30066 • (11/15)Annual Privacy Notice

Page 2 of 2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

236242



Notice of Privacy Practices for Non-Public Personal Information
(Gramm-Leach-Bliley and State Laws)

NLB 30067 • (11/1 )Annual Privacy Notice

Page 1 of 

PROTECTING YOUR PRIVACY
Nippon Life Insurance Company of America (“Nippon 
Life Benefits”) is committed to protecting the 
information you share with us and is required by law 
to maintain the privacy of your personally identifiable 
information. The types of personal information 
that we collect and share depends upon the product 
or service you have with us. This information may 
include medical and/or financial information e.g. your 
social security number, your date of birth, and health 
data.  This Privacy Statement will explain the type of 
information we collect, how we use that information, 
and how we protect that information for all of our 
members.

HOW WE COLLECT INFORMATION
We collect data about you as we do business with you. 
Our claims adjudication processes require that we 
obtain information. Some of the sources of this data 
are as follows.

•  Information we obtain when you apply or
enroll for products or services: You may
provide facts such as your name; address; social
security number; salary; and, when applicable,
medical history.

•  Information we obtain from others: This
may include claim reports, medical records and
other information provided by your employer.

•  Information we obtain through our
transactions and experience with you: This
includes information through claims submitted to
our company from healthcare providers.

•  Information we obtain through the
Internet: This includes data from online forms
you complete. It also includes data we collect
when you visit our websites.

HOW WE SHARE INFORMATION
We may use your information for certain purposes 
including account administration operations.

Claim Payment:
The most common example of how we use or disclose 
your information is to pay claims for covered services 
or to provide eligibility information to your providers 
when you receive treatment.

Healthcare Operations:
Nippon Life Benefits may use or disclose your 
information for activities like

(1)  underwriting, premium rating or other activities 
relating to the creation or renewal of insurance 
contracts (when allowable by law);

(2)  quality assessment and improvement activities 
such as peer review and credentialing of 
providers;

(3) care and disease management activities; and

(4)  data and information systems management. 

Business Associates:
In the course of doing business we may share 
nonpublic personally identifiable financial information 
with third parties that we hire to assist in the 
administration of your benefits. These third parties 
are called ‘Business Associates’ and they have both 
an independent obligation to protect your privacy as 
well as being required to agree in writing in a Business 
Associate Agreement with us to protect and maintain 
the confidentiality and security of your information.

With Others:
Nonpublic personally identifiable information may 
be shared with others for the following reasons. This 
could include personal information about you or 
beneficiaries:

•  in response to a subpoena,
•  to prevent fraud, to comply with inquiries from

government agencies or other regulators,
•  with other companies with your consent or at your

request, or
•  as permitted by law.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

237243



ACCESS TO RECORDED PERSONAL 
INFORMATION
Upon your written request, we will provide you access 
to your recorded personal information which can be 
reasonably locatable and retrievable within 30 days of 
the request.

WE PROTECT INFORMATION WE  
COLLECT ABOUT YOU
We follow strict standards to safeguard personal 
information. These standards include limiting access 
to data and regularly testing our security technology.

ACCURACY OF INFORMATION
We strive for accurate records. Please tell us if you 
receive any incorrect materials from us. We will make 
the appropriate changes.

MORE INFORMATION
You may write to us if you have questions about our 
Privacy Notice. Contact our Privacy Officer at:

Nippon Life Benefits
Compliance Department
655 Third Avenue, 16th Floor
New York, NY 10017-9113

Customer Service Contact Information: 

1-800-374-1835 (English)
1-800-971-0638 (Japanese)
1-877-827-8713 (Korean)

NLB 30067 • (11/1 )

Page 2 of 2

Annual Privacy Notice

DocuSign Envelope ID: 99CEFD2D-0520-4EB8-90B9-0EFFAFFB0A27

238244



245



 

 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 
 

 

In the Matter of an Order of Assignment of 

County Parks Operations  

 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

ORDER NO. ___________ 

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Michael E. Fitzgerald, Director of County Operations, 

that the attached position descriptions be adopted for the following position; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County Parks system requires consistent maintenance and upkeep to ensure that 

the Parks are safe and enjoyable for residents and visitors; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County Parks system has many opportunities for expansion in the coming future, 

and a restructure of duties and personnel will be an advantage; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Wendy Lang, Juvenile Director and current Parks 

Director, that Charles Buchanan, Facilities Director, assume the duties and additional title of Parks 

Director, and that the time of Waylon Somers, CSW Juvenile, be split between the Parks 

Department and Juvenile Department; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Wendy Lang, Juvenile Director and current Parks 

Director, that a part time position shall be created and advertised for Park Reservations. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

 

 

1. All duties, obligations, and authorities of the Parks Director position are hereby removed 

from Wendy Lang and assigned to the Curry County Maintenance Department. Charles 

Buchanan is designated as Department Head for Curry County Parks. The salary split for 

this change will be 90% Facilities and Maintenance, and 10% Parks Department. 

 

2. Waylon Somers shall assume the title of Parks and Community Service Manager. The 

salary split for this change will be 75% Parks Department and 25% Juvenile Department.  

 

3. Staff is directed to create a part-time Park Reservations Assistant position. 

 

240246



DATED this 19th day of October, 2023. 

 

          BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

 

          _____________________________________________ 

          John Herzog, Chair 

 

 

 

          _____________________________________________ 

          Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_____________________________      _____________________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

 

241247



242248



249



244250



245251



246252



247253



248254



249255



250256



251257



252258



253259



254260



255261



256262



257263



258264



259265



260266



261267



262268



263269



264270



265271



266272



267273



268274



269275



270276



271277



272278



273279



274280



275281



276282



277283



278284



279285



280286



281287



282288



283289



284290



285291



286292



287293



288294



289295



290296



291297



292298



293299



294300



295301



296302



297303



304



BOARD OF COMMMISSIONERS 

JOHN HERZOG, CHAIR 

BRAD ALCORN, VICE CHAIR 

JAY TROST, COMMISSIONER 

 

 

 

October 10, 2023 

 

 

Oregon Department of Forestry 

2600 State Street 

Salem, OR  97310 

Wildfirehazardmap@odf.oregon.gov 

 

 

RE:   Curry County Comments  

Proposed Senate Bill 80 Wildfire Hazard Map 

 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to review and discuss the Senate Bill 80 Wildfire Hazard Maps at 

the September 18th AOC District 4 Meeting in Grants Pass. We appreciate the Department of 

Forestry’s acknowledgement that the Maps are a continued source of consternation locally and 

clearly warrant enhanced public review. Generally, no legislative or practical justification was 

provided for the de minimis incremental changes made to the Senate Bill 762 maps that resulted 

in the proposed Senate Bill 80 maps.  

 

The Wildfire Hazard Maps imposed by Senate Bill 762 were promoted as a significant benefit to 

private landowners and presented parcel-specific wildfire risk information.  The Maps allowed 

property owners to conduct a search to find their property and to access the pertinent wildfire risk 

information. However, due to concerns about the purpose of the Maps as well as the limited time 

allowed for outreach and education, the issue was returned to the Oregon Legislature. Now, 

advocates purport that the Senate Bill 80 Maps are more “general” in nature and therefore do not 

necessarily reflect the risk on a specific parcel.  However, the incomplete and inaccurate 

methodology of risk used to develop the Maps is unchanged from the previous Senate Bill 762 

Maps.  The problems inherent to these Maps were not addressed, and the practical outcome 

remains the same; parcel-specific land-use and building requirements.   

 

The Wildfire Hazard Map proposed by Senate Bill 80 would impose considerable detriment to 

Curry County, and numerous concerns specific to the County arise as set forth herein. 

94235 Moore Street | Suite 123 

Gold Beach, OR  97444 

BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us 

(541) 247-3296 

 

 

 

299305



Much of Curry County has a wet, foggy climate with annual precipitation of 60-100 inches 

depending on the location.  It is difficult for a well-managed property to burn more than a few 

acres before being put out or naturally going out.  The Japanese discovered the difficulty of burning 

our forests during WWII when they dropped incendiary devices at Mt. Emily in an attempt to 

“catch” the west on fire.  The Risk Maps proposed for Curry County do not reflect the effect of 

moisture in the majority of developed and forestland areas where the WUIs are applied.  Further, 

there is no consideration of the marine layer, which is persistent up to three (3) miles inland of the 

coast.  A majority of the identified WUI parcels of Curry County are within the influence of the 

marine layer and, in reality, rarely exhibit any significant wildfire risk. Many of the WUI 

designations recommended would subject homeowners to expensive land use and fire hardening 

requirements that would be of little value to the subject properties.  Additionally, such designations 

will continue to erode the financial feasibility of building a house in Curry County.  Currently, a 

household would need to earn approximately $121,900.00 annually to afford the median home 

price of $426,500.00 in Curry County.  Fewer than 19% of households in Curry County have the 

combined income to support this cost, nor the fiscal responsibility of increased fire insurance 

premiums and enhanced defensible space requirements. The real-world application of the proposed 

WUIs in Curry County is incongruent with the Governor’s plan to increase affordable housing. 

 

The basic premise behind the determination of risk class is flawed and does not reflect the wildfire 

history in Curry County.  That history is well recognized (Silver 1988; Biscuit 2002; Chetco 2017; 

Flat 2023; Smith River Complex 2023), and thus it is simple to ascertain the location of high hazard 

areas. It is well documented that the management, or lack thereof, of our State and Federal forests 

has resulted in conflagration burns that expose private landowners to undue fire risk.  These 

wildfire events rarely start or become conflagrations on private lands. When fires start on private 

lands in Curry County, they are quickly put out.   

 

In order to properly address the inherent wildfire risk stemming from publicly-owned forestland, 

the Wildland-Urban Interface (“WUI”) designation should be applied to all State and Federal land 

boundaries with private lands. Ideally, this application of WUI designations could allow those 

forestlands to be subject to a payment per acre in order to cover the disproportionate financial, 

safety, and health burdens imposed upon the citizens of the locality in which the high wildfire risk 

lands are located.  This proposal is consistent with the legal liability assessed to a private party if 

a fire on their land spreads to adjacent properties. 

 

Another option that could be considered before placing the fire risk burden on private citizens is 

to require government forestlands to maintain a defensible space buffer that should be labeled the 

WUI.  This defensible space buffer should be placed and maintained as a 500-foot buffer inside 

the boundary of the federal/state forest lands.  This defensible space buffer should meet the same 

fire setback requirements recommended by the Oregon Fire Marshall’s Office, including tree 

crowns spaced at least ten (10) apart, trees limbed six (6) feet up from the base and shrubs, forest 

debris, etc. removed below the tree canopy. 

 

300306



In conclusion, Curry County does not support the risk hazards or WUIs proposed in the Senate 

Bill 80 maps.  There has been no consideration of our unique climate factors; there is no 

justification to continue to identify and then place wildfire risks and costs that are the result of 

state and federal forest mis-management on the citizens of Curry County; and the proposed WUIs 

are not strategically applied. The implementation of these maps will indirectly raise housing costs 

and accentuate the deficit of affordable housing with no tangible advantage.  We implore the 

Oregon Department of Forestry to both remand the Senate Bill 80 maps to the Legislature, and to 

advocate the basic principle of applying WUIs and Wildfire Hazard areas to State and Federal 

forestland, from which the real problem originates. 

 

      Sincerely, 

 
      CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      John Herzog, Chair 

 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair 

 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

301307




